
City Council Agenda 
 
MARCH 23, 2021 
6:00 p.m. 
City of Turlock Yosemite Room 
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California 
 
 

NOTICE: THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXECUTIVE ORDER  
N-29-20, ISSUED BY CALIFORNIA GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM ON MARCH 17, 2020, THE 

RALPH M. BROWN ACT (CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54950, ET SEQ.), AND 
THE FEDERAL AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT. 

 

THIS MEETING WILL BE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.  SEATING CAPACITY WILL BE LIMITED TO 
THE FIRST 14 PEOPLE, ON A FIRST COME FIRST SERVE BASIS.  COMPLIANCE WITH ALL 

HEALTH & SAFETY GUIDELINES INCLUDING COVID-19 SCREENING, TEMPERATURE CHECKS, 
FACE COVERINGS, AND PHYSICAL DISTANCING MEASURES WILL BE REQUIRED FOR IN-

PERSON ATTENDANCE.  PLEASE PLAN TO ARRIVE APPROXIMATELY 15 MINUTES PRIOR TO 
THE SCHEDULED MEETING START TIME TO ALLOW FOR SCREENING PROCESSES.  FOR 

MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE VISIT THE CITY OF TURLOCK WEBSITE AT 
WWW.CITYOFTURLOCK.ORG. 

 

THIS MEETING WILL BE STREAMED ON THE CITY OF TURLOCK WEBSITE AT 
WWW.CITYOFTURLOCK.ORG AND BROADCASTED ON SPECTRUM CHANNEL 2.  MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC MAY ALSO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA THE FOLLOWING METHODS: 

 

JOIN BY CLICKING ON THE MEETING LINK: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84924629186 
 

OR 
 

JOIN BY ACCESSING THE ZOOM WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 
WEBINAR ID: 849 2462 9186 

 

OR 
 

JOIN BY TELEPHONE: 669-900-6833 
WEBINAR ID: 849 2462 9186 

 

 
Mayor 

Amy Bublak 
 Acting City Manager 
 Council Members Gary R. Hampton 
Nicole Larson Rebecka Monez City Clerk 
Andrew Nosrati Pam Franco  Jennifer Land 
     Vice Mayor  Interim City Attorney 
 George A. Petrulakis 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS:  The Turlock City Council meetings are conducted in English and translation to 
other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary. 
 
EQUAL ACCESS POLICY:  If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, please contact the City 
Clerk’s Office at (209) 668-5540.  The City is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and 
services.  Please allow sufficient time for the City to process and respond to your request. 
 
NOTICE:  Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the City Council 
on any item appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Public Hearing items, before or during the City Council’s 
consideration of the item. 
 
AGENDA PACKETS:  Prior to the City Council meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is available for review on the City’s website at 
www.cityofturlock.org and in the City Clerk’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials 
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also available for public 
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office.  Such documents may be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the 
documents before the meeting. 



Council Agenda 
3/23/21 
Page 2 

 

 

0. A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
 

D. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS 
 
 
1. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

The Closed Session item(s) for this meeting have been agendized and will be heard toward the 
latter part of the meeting. 

 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS POSTED OR AMENDED 

This is the time for the City Council to remove items from the agenda or to change the order of the agenda.  Matters 
may be taken up out of order of the established agenda by a four-fifths vote of the City Council. 

 
 
3. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS,  

PRESENTATIONS, AND BRIEFINGS: 
 

A. Proclamation:  Vietnam Veterans Day, March 29, 2021 
B. Briefing:  COVID-19 Update, presented by Interim Fire Chief Gary Carlson 

 
 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WISHING TO ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL WILL BE GIVEN THE 
SAME TIME ALLOTMENT FOR COMMENTS AS NORMALLY ALLOWED FOR MEETINGS 
SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20. 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3(a), this is the time set aside for members of the public to 
directly address the City Council on any item of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
City Council and to address the Council on any item on tonight’s agenda, including Consent Calendar items.  If you 
wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may be asked to defer your remarks until the Council addresses 
the matter. 

 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(3), no action or discussion may be undertaken on any 
item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that the City Council, or its staff, may briefly respond to comments 
or questions from members of the public, provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, or 
direct staff to place the issue on a future agenda. 

 
 
5. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY 

TITLE:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda 
3/23/21 
Page 3 

 

 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 Information concerning the consent items listed hereinbelow has been forwarded to each Councilmember prior to this 

meeting for study.  Unless the Mayor, a Councilmember or member of the audience has questions concerning the 
Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Council.  The action taken by the Council in approving 
the consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items. 

 
A. Resolution:  Accepting Weekly Demands of 2/25/21 in the amount of $989,717.07; 

Weekly Demands of 3/4/21 in the amount of $1,347,115.00; Monthly Demands in the 
amount of $2,511,149.40 

B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 26, 2021; Minutes of the 
Special Meeting of February 3, 2021; Minutes of the Special Meeting of February 9, 
2021 

C. Motion:  Approving the Final Map and Subdivision Improvement Agreement with FQC, 
Inc., conditioned upon construction of improvements for the SM 19-01 FQC subdivision 
(Development Project No. 20-029) 

D. Motion:  Approving the advertisement for construction bids for City Project No. 20-032 
"Chemical System Upgrades Project at RWQCF" 

E. 1.  Resolution:  Approving the sole source purchase of air purification and surface 
treatment technology for City transit vehicles from United Safety and Survivability 
Corporation (USSC) of Exton, Pennsylvania, to address the COVID-19 public health 
emergency in an amount not to exceed $58,668 (Funds 425 and 426), without 
compliance to formal bid procedures in accordance with Turlock Municipal Code Section 
2-7-08(b)(6) and in support of City Project No. 21004 “Transit Air Purification Upgrades” 

 2.  Resolution:  Approving the sole source purchase of air purification technology for the 
Roger K. Fall Transit Center from United Safety and Survivability Corporation (USSC) of 
Exton, Pennsylvania, to address the COVID-19 public health emergency in an amount 
not to exceed $13,384 (Fund 426), without compliance to formal bid procedures in 
accordance with Turlock Municipal Code Section 2-7-08(b)(6) and in support of City 
Project No. 21004 “Transit Air Purification Upgrades” 

 3.  Resolution:  Authorizing the City Manager, or his or her designee, to procure 
additional air purification or antimicrobial equipment, materials, or services, as needed to 
maintain or extend enhanced cleaning protocols in the air and on surfaces in City 
vehicles and facilities from United Safety and Survivability Corporation (USSC) of Exton, 
Pennsylvania, contingent on the availability of budgeted funds, without compliance to 
formal bid procedures in accordance with Turlock Municipal Code Section 2-7-08(b)(6) 

F. Resolution:  Authorizing the City Manager, or his or her designee, to procure equipment, 
materials, or maintenance and support services from ANGI Energy Systems, LLC 
(ANGI), of Janesville, Wisconsin, to repair, support, and maintain ANGI Compressed 
Natural Gas (CNG) fueling systems, contingent on the availability of budgeted funds, 
without compliance to formal bid procedures in accordance with Turlock Municipal Code 
Section 2-7-08(b)(6) 

G. Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 2 to an Agreement between the City of Turlock and 
Robertson-Bryan, Inc. to provide National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit compliance assistance for the Turlock Regional Water Quality Control 
Facility (RWQCF), increasing the compensation to an annual amount not to exceed 
$150,000 (non-general fund) for the remaining term of the Agreement 

H. Motion:  Accepting the City of Turlock’s audited Financial Statements for the 
Transportation Development Act for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 

I. Motion:  Approving a Professional Services Agreement with MGT of America Consulting, 
LLC for preparation of a Cost Allocation Plan required under federal regulations for 
Fiscal Year 2021-22, for a period of one (1) year with an option to extend the agreement 
for two (2) additional one-year terms, in an annual amount not to exceed $17,000 and a 
total amount not to exceed $51,000 if all renewal periods are exercised 

 



Council Agenda 
3/23/21 
Page 4 

 

 

J. 1.  Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 1 to the Memorandum of Understanding between 
the City of Turlock and the County of Stanislaus to increase the Homeless Emergency 
Aid Program Grant Funds in the amount of $15,942.07 

 2.  Resolution:  Appropriating $15,942.07 to account number 257-41-489.34145 “HEAP 
Funding (Homeless Emergency Aid Program)” 

K. Resolution:  Approving the Tentative Agreement revising the Memorandum of 
Understanding (“MOU”) between the City of Turlock (“City”) and Turlock Firefighters, 
Local #2434 (“Turlock Fire”) covering the period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 
and appropriating $100,000 from General Fund unassigned reserves to account number 
110-30-300.41059 “Continuous Service Pay” and related roll-up costs 

 
 
7. FINAL READINGS:  None 
 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

A. Request to approve a Substantial Amendment to the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual 
Action Plan for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program to program 
CDBG Coronavirus (CDBG-CV) Round 1 and 3 funds and authorizing submittal to the 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and authorizing 
the City Manager to execute all necessary documents  (Pitt) 

 
Recommended Action: 

Resolution:  Approving a Substantial Amendment to the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual 
Action Plan for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program to program 
CDBG Coronavirus (CDBG-CV) Round 1 and 3 funds and authorizing submittal to the 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD); and authorizing 
the City Manager to execute all necessary documents 

 
 
9. ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. Request to approve Amendment No. 5 with Carollo Engineers of Walnut Creek, 
California, in the amount of $1,896,809 (Non-General Fund - Fund 420) bringing the 
contract total to $5,142,559, for professional engineering design services for City Project 
No. 18-69 "Surface Water Distribution System Improvements” AND approve Amendment 
No. 1 with Horizon Water and Environment, LLC of Oakland, California, in the amount of 
$29,440 (Non-General Fund - Fund 420) bringing the contract total to $100,281, for 
professional environmental services and biological monitoring during construction of City 
Project No. 18-69 "Surface Water Distribution System Improvements” AND appropriate 
$1,926,000 to account number 420-52-551.51356 “Surface Water Dist. Imp.-Terminal 
Facilities” from Fund 420 “Water” unassigned reserves for professional design services 
and environmental services and biological monitoring during construction of City Project 
No. 18-69 "Surface Water Distribution System Improvements”  (Bray) 

 
Recommended Action: 
Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 5 with Carollo Engineers of Walnut Creek, 
California, in the amount of $1,896,809 (Non-General Fund - Fund 420) bringing the 
contract total to $5,142,559, for professional engineering design services for City Project 
No. 18-69 "Surface Water Distribution System Improvements” 

 



Council Agenda 
3/23/21 
Page 5 

 

 

Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 1 with Horizon Water and Environment, LLC of 
Oakland, California, in the amount of $29,440 (Non-General Fund - Fund 420) bringing 
the contract total to $100,281, for professional environmental services and biological 
monitoring during construction of City Project No. 18-69 "Surface Water Distribution 
System Improvements” 

 
Resolution:  Appropriating $1,926,000 to account number 420-52-551.51356 “Surface 
Water Dist. Imp.-Terminal Facilities” from Fund 420 “Water” unassigned reserves for 
professional design services and environmental services and biological monitoring 
during construction of City Project No. 18-69 "Surface Water Distribution System 
Improvements” 

 
 
10. CITY MANAGER REPORTS/UPDATES 

City Manager reports/updates are provided for informational purposes only and no action or discussion may be 
undertaken.  The City Manager may direct department heads to provide reports/updates at the City Manager’s 
request. 

 
A. Administrative Services 

1. Monthly Budget Update  (Hampton/Silva) 
2. Unsheltered Homeless and Encampments Crisis Update  (Hampton/Williams) 

 
B. Fire Department 

1. Public Safety Briefing  (Carlson) 
 

C. Municipal Services 
1. Monthly Departmental Update  (Brown) 

 
D. Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities 

1. Recreation Facilities Re-opening  (Van Guilder) 
 

E. Police Department 
1. Public Safety Briefing  (Williams) 
2. Radio/CAD/RMS Update  (Williams) 

 
 
11. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 

Requests for Council items for future consideration will be scheduled in accordance with Resolution No. 2008-019. 

 
 
12. COUNCILMEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Councilmembers may ask questions, provide comments, and make brief announcements on notable topics of 
interest.  The Brown Act does not allow discussion or action by the legislative body. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda 
3/23/21 
Page 6 

 

 

13. CLOSED SESSION: 
 

A. Threat to Public Services or Facilities, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957(a) 
“This chapter shall not be construed to prevent the legislative body of a local agency from holding 
closed sessions with the Governor, Attorney General, district attorney, agency counsel, sheriff, or 
chief of police, or their respective deputies, or a security consultant or a security operations 
manager, on matters posing a threat to the security of public buildings, a threat to the security of 
essential public services, including water, drinking water, wastewater treatment, natural gas 
service, and electric service, or a threat to the public’s right of access to public services or public 

facilities.” 
Consultation with:  Interim Fire Chief Gary Carlson and Interim City Attorney George A. 
Petrulakis 

 
B. Conference with Labor Negotiators, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957.6(a) 

“Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a legislative body of a local agency may hold closed 
sessions with the local agency's designated representatives regarding the salaries, salary 
schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of its represented and 
unrepresented employees, and, for represented employees, any other matter within the statutorily 
provided scope of representation.” 

Agency Designated Representative:  Human Resources Manager Sarah Eddy 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Associated Police Officers 
Employee Organization:  Turlock City Employees Association 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Firefighters Association-Local 2434 
Employee Organization:  Turlock Management Association-Public Safety 
Unrepresented Employees:  Accountant, Sr., Administrative Analyst, Administrative Services 
Director, Assistant to the City Manager for Economic Development/Community Housing, Chief 
Building Official, City Clerk, Community Housing Program Supervisor, Deputy Director 
Development Services/Planning, Development Services Director, Development Services 
Supervisor/City Surveyor, Executive Administrative Assistant/Deputy City Clerk, Executive 
Administrative Assistant/Municipal Services, Executive Administrative Assistant/Public Safety, 
Fire Chief, Human Resources Analyst, Sr., Human Resources Manager, Human Resources 
Technician, Information Technology Manager, Legal Assistant, Municipal Services Deputy 
Director, Municipal Services Director, Office Assistant I, Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities 
Director, Parks, Recreation and Public Facilities Manager, Payroll Coordinator, Police Business 
Unit Supervisor, Police Chief, Principal Civil Engineer, Regulatory Affairs Manager, Transit 
Manager, Utilities Manager, and Water Quality Control Division Manager. 

 
C. Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release, Cal. Gov’t Code §54957(b)(1) 

 
 
14. REPORTS FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 





































































































































































































































































































CITY OF TURLOCK 

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019 



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 

CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

 
Table of Contents 

      

 
     Page 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report ................................................................................................................. 1 
 
Basic Financial Statements  
 
 Streets Special Revenue Fund 
 

 Comparative Balance Sheets ............................................................................................ 3 
 
 Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and  
   Changes in Fund Balance ............................................................................................... 4 
 
 Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance –  
   Budget and Actual .......................................................................................................... 5 

 
 Transportation Enterprise Fund 
 

 Comparative Statements of Net Position .......................................................................... 6 
 

 Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and  
   Changes in Fund Net Position ........................................................................................ 7 

 
 Comparative Statements of Cash Flows ........................................................................... 8 

 
 Notes to Financial Statements ........................................................................................................ 9 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

and on Compliance with the Transportation Development Act and Other Matters  
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with  
Government Auditing Standards ....................................................................................................... 21 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for TDA Program Funds and on  
  Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with Section 6666 and 6667  
  of the Rules and Regulations of the California Administrative Code in  
  the Transportation Development Act Statutes and Administrative Code for 1987 and  
  the Allocation Instructions and Resolutions of the Stanislaus Council of Governments ............... 23 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for TDA Funds and on Internal Control Over     
Compliance In Accordance with Rules and Regulations of the Public Transportation  

  Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) ........................... 27 
 
Current Status of Prior Year Findings ....................................................................................................... 29



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Honorable Members of the City Council,  
of the City of Turlock 
Turlock, California 

Report on Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Transportation Development Act Funds 
(TDA Funds) which are included in the Streets Special Revenue Fund and the Transportation Enterprise 
Fund of the City of Turlock (City), California, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the TDA Funds’ basic financial 
statements as listed in the Table of Contents.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the TDA Funds’ preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the TDA Funds’ 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

1



Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the TDA Funds as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the respective changes 
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the TDA Funds and do not purport to, and do 
not present fairly the financial position of the City as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the changes in its 
financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.   

The emphasis of this matter does not constitute a modification to our opinions. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 12, 2021 
on our consideration of the TDA Funds’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the TDA Funds’ internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
March 12, 2021 

2



CITY OF TURLOCK
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS

GOVERNMENTAL FUND - STREETS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019
ASSETS

Cash and investments (Note 2) $237,898 $75,396
Accounts receivable 213

Total Assets $237,898 $75,609

LIABILITIES
Accounts and salaries payable $38,099 $52,092
Deposits payable 148 500
Unearned revenue (Note 4) 21,811 21,811

Total Liabilities 60,058 74,403

FUND BALANCES (Note 5)
Restricted 177,840 1,206

Total Fund Balance (Deficit) 177,840 1,206

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $237,898 $75,609

See accompanying notes to financial statements

3



CITY OF TURLOCK
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS

GOVERNMENTAL FUND - STREETS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues $66,437
Charges for services $56,162 44,638
Interest income and other revenues 211 797

Total Revenues 56,373 111,872

EXPENDITURES
Public ways and facilities / transportation 529,739 515,820

Total Expenditures 529,739 515,820

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (473,366) (403,948)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in from City's Streets Special Revenue Fund 700,000 700,000
Transfers out to City's Streets Special Revenue Fund (50,000) (67,830)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 650,000 632,170

Net Change in Fund Balance 176,634 228,222

Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year 1,206 (227,016)

Fund Balance, End of Year $177,840 $1,206

See accompanying notes to financial statements

4



CITY OF TURLOCK
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS

GOVERNMENTAL FUND - STREETS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental revenues $50,000 $50,000 ($50,000)
Charges for services 28,800 28,800 $56,162 27,362
Interest income and other revenues 100 100 211 111

Total Revenues 78,900 78,900 56,373 (22,527)

EXPENDITURES:
Public ways and facilities / transportation 798,475 797,955 529,739 268,216

Total Expenditures 798,475 797,955 529,739 268,216

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (719,575) (719,055) (473,366) 245,689

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in from City's Streets Special Revenue Fund 700,000 700,000 700,000
Transfers out to City's Streets Special Revenue Fund (50,000) (50,000)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 700,000 650,000 650,000

Net Change in Fund Balance ($19,575) ($69,055) 176,634 $245,689

Fund Balance (Deficit), Beginning of Year 1,206

Fund Balance, End of Year $177,840

See accompanying notes to financial statements

5



CITY OF TURLOCK
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS

TRANSPORTATION ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

Current assets:
Cash and investments (Note 2) $1,400,763 $1,237,707
Accounts receivable, grants 1,846,268 1,181,604            
Accounts receivable, other 8,665
Interest receivable 2,701 3,765

Total current assets 3,258,397 2,423,076

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (Note 3):

Nondepreciable 5,050,671 10,791,604
Depreciable, net 15,207,493 7,221,512

Total noncurrent assets 20,258,164 18,013,116

Total Assets 23,516,561 20,436,192

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions (Note 9) 167,389 152,854
Deferred outflows related to OPEB (Note 10) 31,753 9,832

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 199,142 162,686

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accruals 436,125 437,323
Salaries payable 12,334 10,082
Unearned revenue (Note 4) 1,985,492 1,245,432
Compensated absences - due in one year 14,904 9,534

Total current liabilities 2,448,855 1,702,371

Long-term liabilities 
Compensated absences 59,616 38,134
Total OPEB liability (Note 10) 170,343 244,312
Net pension liability (Note 9) 1,241,042 969,444

Total long-term liabilities 1,471,001 1,251,890

Total Liabilities 3,919,856 2,954,261

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions (Note 9) 24,035 8,203
Deferred inflows related to OPEB (Note 10) 137,935 9,426

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 161,970 17,629

NET POSITION (Note 5)
Net investment in capital assets 20,258,164 18,013,116
Unrestricted (624,287) (386,128)

Total Net Position $19,633,877 $17,626,988

See accompanying notes to financial statements

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

6



CITY OF TURLOCK
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS

TRANSPORTATION ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $228,999 $243,569
Other income 360 13,114

Total operating revenues 229,359 256,683

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, benefits and insurance 809,772 868,012
Contractual 2,243,618 2,216,165
Supplies and maintenance 218,945 257,535
Utilities 41,941 36,022
Fleet expense 152,111 206,951
Depreciation (Note 3) 1,150,327 808,405
Other expenses 10,927 15,652

Total operating expenses 4,627,641 4,408,742

Operating loss (4,398,282) (4,152,059)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Operating grants 3,081,826 2,925,660
Loss from retirement of capital assets (104,484) (92,811)
Investment income 9,558 7,598

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,986,900 2,840,447

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL GRANTS 
AND TRANSFERS (1,411,382) (1,311,612)

Capital grants 3,404,965 3,982,090
Transfers in from other City funds 55,438 49,935
Transfers out to other City funds (42,132) (240,000)

Net Capital Grants and Transfers 3,418,271 3,792,025

Change in Net Position 2,006,889 2,480,413

Net Position - Beginning 17,626,988 15,146,575

Net Position - Ending $19,633,877 $17,626,988

See accompanying notes to financial statements

7



CITY OF TURLOCK
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS

TRANSPORTATION ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers $220,694 $278,501
Payments to suppliers (2,668,740) (3,019,243)
Payments to employees (475,154) (346,883)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities (2,923,200) (3,087,625)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers in 55,438 49,935
Transfers out (42,132) (240,000)
Interfund receipts (payments) (1,406,767)
Intergovernmental receipts - operations 2,417,162 2,727,843

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 2,430,468 1,131,011

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Intergovernmental receipts - capital program 4,145,025 7,083,310
Purchases of capital assets (3,502,556) (3,898,076)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2,697 4,765

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 645,166 3,189,999

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income 10,622 4,322

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 10,622 4,322

Net Cash Flows 163,056 1,237,707

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and investments at beginning of period 1,237,707

Cash and investments at end of period $1,400,763 $1,237,707

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO CASH FLOWS
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss ($4,398,282) ($4,152,059)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to cash flows

from operating activities:
Depreciation 1,150,327 808,405

Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (8,665) 21,818
Accounts payable (1,198) (286,918)
Salaries payable 2,252 4,400
Compensated absences 26,852 4,970
Deferred outflows/inflows and total OPEB liability 32,619 97,764
Deferred outflows/inflows and net pension liability 272,895 413,995

Cash Flows from Operating Activities ($2,923,200) ($3,087,625)

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS

Retirement of capital assets ($107,181) ($97,576)

See accompanying notes to financial statements

8



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. The Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the Transportation Development Act Funds (TDA Funds) are
intended to present the financial position and changes in financial position and cash flows for
only those transactions attributable to the Streets Special Revenue Fund and the Transportation
Enterprise Fund (TDA Funds) administered and disbursed by the City of Turlock, California
(City).

The accounting policies of the TDA Funds of the City are in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) applicable to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing accounting principles. The following is a summary of the
more significant accounting policies.

B. Fund Accounting

The operations of the TDA Funds are accounted for in separate sets of self-balancing accounts
that comprise their assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, fund balance or net position, revenues and expenditures or expenses. Governmental
resources are allocated to and for individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to
be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The TDA Funds are
presented in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Governmental Fund Type

Streets Special Revenue Fund - The Streets Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the
City’s share of the Transportation Development Act (TDA) allocations that are legally restricted
for street maintenance and capital improvements. In addition, this fund accounts for the
Proposition 1B funds whose use is generally restricted to pavement maintenance, rehabilitation
and/or reconstruction.

Proprietary Fund Type

Transportation Enterprise Fund - The Transportation Enterprise Fund is used to account for the
operation and management of the City’s transit operations. TDA and Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) allocations for transit operations are accounted for in this fund along with
Proposition 1B funds designated for transit programs.

9



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

C. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

Streets Special Revenue Fund

The Streets Special Revenue Fund’s financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement
of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance. The Special Revenue Fund is accounted
for on a spending or current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and deferred outflows of resources, and
current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, are included on the Balance Sheet.  The
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance presents increases (revenues
and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in fund
balances. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures
of the current period.  Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City’s accrual period is generally
90 days after fiscal year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual
basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred.

The Streets Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the City’s share of the Transportation
Development Act (TDA) allocations that are legally restricted for street maintenance and projects
supporting bicycle and pedestrian activity adjacent to and on City streets/roads (non-motorized).
In addition, this fund accounts for user fees collected related to permitted trenching activity and
transportation permits within the City streets/roads and related right-of-way.

Transportation Enterprise Fund

The Transportation Enterprise Fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows.

The Transportation Enterprise Fund is accounted for using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the
Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net
Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while
expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

The Transportation Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operation and management of the
City’s transit operations.  TDA and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) allocations for transit
operations and capital projects are accounted for in this fund, along with Proposition 1B funds
designated for transit programs.

Operating revenues in the Transportation Enterprise Fund include fare, Measure L Transit and
other revenues generated from the primary operations of the fund, excluding grants. All other
revenues, including operating grants, are reported as nonoperating revenues.  Operating expenses
are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are
reported as nonoperating expenses.

10



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position or balance sheet reports a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position or balance sheet reports a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

E. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The City
categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles.  The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in
measuring fair value are observable in the market.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

Level 2 inputs are inputs – other than quoted prices included within level 1 – that are 
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.   

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the 
fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input 
that is significant to the entire measurement. 

F. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

11



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The TDA Funds participate in the City’s cash and investment pool.  The City pools surplus cash 
from all sources and all funds, except cash with fiscal agents, so that it can be invested at the 
maximum yield, consistent with safety and liquidity.  Investment income is allocated among 
funds on the basis of the average month-end cash and investment balances in these funds.  As of 
June 30, 2020, and June 30, 2019, the TDA Funds had cash and investment balances of 
$1,638,661 and $1,313,103, respectively. 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy 

The City’s Investment Policy and the California Government Code permit the following 
investments, provided the credit ratings of the issuers are acceptable and approved percentages and 
maturities are not exceeded.  The table below also identifies certain provisions of the California 
Government Code, or the Investment Policy if more restrictive, that address interest rate risk, credit 
risk and concentration of credit risk.   

The City’s investment policy authorizes the following investments:  

Minimum Maximum Maximum
Maximum Credit Percentage Investment

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality of Portfolio In One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Notes, Bonds and/or Bills 5 years A Unlimited N/A

U.S. Government Agency Securities 5 years A Unlimited
No more than 

25%

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years N/A 30% N/A

Certificates of Deposit 5 years A Unlimited N/A

Bankers' Acceptances 180 days A 40% No more than 
30%

Commercial Paper 270 days A-1 or Higher 25% No more than 
10%

State of Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A N/A Equal to maximum 
limit set by LAIF

N/A

Repurchase Agreement 1 year N/A Unlimited N/A

Money Market and Mutual Funds N/A A 20% N/A

Corporate Notes 5 years AA 30% N/A

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are defined as investments with 
original maturities of 90 days or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash. 
The City considers all pooled cash and investments (consisting of cash and investments and 
restricted cash and investments) held by the City as cash and cash equivalents because the pool is 
used essentially as a demand deposit account from the standpoint of the funds.  The City also 
considers all non-pooled cash and investments (consisting of funds with fiscal agents) as cash and 
cash equivalents, because investments meet the criteria for cash equivalents defined above. 

12



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

 

 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Fair Value Hierarchy 
 
The TDA Funds categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation 
inputs used to measure fair value of the assets.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active 
market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 
inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 
 
The TDA Funds’ investment in the City’s investment pool is not subject to the fair value 
hierarchy.  
 

NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS  
 
Capital assets acquired by the Streets Fund are recorded as expenditures in the special revenue 
fund and capitalized at cost and recorded as part of the City’s Statement of Net Position in the 
government-wide financial statements. The costs of infrastructure (roads, curbs, gutters, streets, 
bridges, sidewalks, drainage systems, right-of-ways, and land related to such assets) are recorded 
as expenditures in the special revenue fund and are also capitalized and recorded in the City’s 
Statement of Net Position in the government-wide financial statements. These infrastructure 
assets become the property of the City and are maintained by the City. 
 
Capital assets acquired by the Transportation Enterprise Fund are recorded at cost in the 
Transportation Enterprise Fund and are depreciated using the straight-line method over estimated 
useful lives. Operating expenses include depreciation on all depreciable capital assets. Repairs 
and maintenance are charged to expense when the services are rendered. 

 
City policy has set the capitalization thresholds for reporting capital assets at the following: 
 

General Capital Assets $10,000

Infrastructure Capital Assets 50,000  
 

Depreciation has been provided on a straight-line basis over the following useful lives: 
 

Years
Land Improvements and Infrastructure 25-60
Buildings 30-50
Furniture and Equipment 5-10
Vehicles 5-10  

 
  
  

13



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Transportation Enterprise Fund 

The following is a summary of capital assets for the Transportation Enterprise fund: 

Balance at Retirements/ Balance at
June 30, 2019 Additions Adjustments Transfers June 30, 2020

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $1,823,738 $1,558,721 $3,382,459

Construction in progress 8,967,866 $3,502,556 (10,802,210) 1,668,212

Total capital assets not being depreciated 10,791,604 3,502,556 (9,243,489) 5,050,671

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements 2,106,887 452,604 2,559,491

Buildings 1,904,615 6,277,006 8,181,621

Furniture and equipment 1,026,934 ($50,967) 105,113 1,081,080

Vehicles 4,943,225 (375,056) 2,408,766 6,976,935

Infrastructure 251,912 (20,861) 231,051

Total capital assets being depreciated 10,233,573 (446,884) 9,243,489 19,030,178

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements (426,868) (75,224) (502,092)

Buildings (685,035) (168,104) (853,139)

Furniture and equipment (514,694) (102,423) 19,332 (597,785)

Vehicles (1,369,802) (800,725) 319,792 (1,850,735)

Infrastructure (15,662) (3,851) 579 (18,934)

Total accumulated depreciation (3,012,061) (1,150,327) 339,703 (3,822,685)

Net capital assets being depreciated 7,221,512 (1,150,327) (107,181) 9,243,489 15,207,493

Capital assets, net $18,013,116 $2,352,229 ($107,181) $20,258,164

14



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

 

 

NOTE 4 – UNEARNED REVENUE – CAPITAL PROGRAMS 
 
 The TDA Funds received grants from the State of California Department of Transportation for 

projects financed with Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service 
Enhancement Account (Proposition 1B), and had received Local Transportation Fund and State 
Transit Assistance funds in advance of costs being incurred.  As of June 30, 2020, and 2019, 
unearned revenue related to those programs is as follows: 
 

2020 2019
Streets Special Revenue Fund:

State Transit Assistance and Local Transportation Fund $21,811 $21,811

Transportation Enterprise Fund:
Proposition 1B $258,313
State Transit Assistance and Local Transportation Fund $1,985,492 444,502         
Insurance Proceeds Restricted to Bus Replacement 542,617         

Total Transit Enterprise Fund $1,985,492 $1,245,432

 
NOTE 5 – NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES 

 
A. Net Position 
 
 Net Position is the excess of all assets and deferred outflows of resources over all liabilities and 

deferred inflows of resources.  Net Position is divided into three captions.  These captions apply 
only to Net Position, which is determined only for proprietary funds and at the Government-wide 
level, and are described below: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets describes the portion of Net Position which is represented by the 
current net book value of the capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued to 
finance these assets.  

 
Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and 
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions 
which the City cannot unilaterally alter.   

 
B. Fund Balances 
 

Governmental fund balances represent the net current assets of each fund.  Net current assets 
generally represent a fund’s cash, receivables and deferred outflows of resources, less its 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. 
 
The Streets Special Revenue Fund’s fund balances are classified based on spending constraints 
imposed on the use of resources.  The use of the funds accounted for in these Statements is 
restricted by law; therefore, these funds will never have committed or assigned balances.  Each 
category in the following hierarchy is ranked according to the degree of spending constraint:  

  

15



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 5 – NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (Continued) 

Nonspendable represents balances set aside to indicate items do not represent available, 
spendable resources even though they are a component of assets.  Assets not expected to be 
converted to cash, such as prepaids, notes receivable, and property held for resale are 
included.  However, if proceeds realized from the sale or collection of nonspendable assets are 
restricted, committed or assigned, then nonspendable amounts are required to be presented as a 
component of the applicable category.  

Restricted fund balances have external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, 
laws, regulations, or enabling legislation which requires the resources to be used only for a 
specific purpose. Encumbrances and nonspendable amounts subject to restrictions are included 
along with spendable resources. 

Committed fund balances have constraints imposed by resolution of the City Council which may 
be altered only by formal action of the City Council.  Encumbrances and nonspendable amounts 
subject to council commitments are included along with spendable resources. 

Assigned fund balances are amounts constrained by the City’s intent to be used for a specific 
purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the City Council or its 
designee and may be changed at the discretion of the City Council or its designee, the City 
Manager. This category includes: encumbrances; nonspendables, when it is the City’s intent to 
use proceeds or collections for a specific purpose; and residual fund balances, if any, of Special 
Revenue and Capital Projects which have not been restricted or committed. 

Unassigned fund balance represents residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or 
assigned. This includes the residual General Fund balance and residual fund deficits, if any, of 
other governmental funds. 

NOTE 6 – TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT 

The State of California established the TDA to provide funds for public transportation.  The funds 
are administered by the Stanislaus Council of Governments (StanCOG). TDA created a Local 
Transportation Fund (LTF) in each county for the transportation purposes specified in the 
Transportation Development Act Statutes and Administrative Code.  Revenues of the LTF are 
derived from a 1/4 of one percent sales tax rate levied in each county. 

16



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 7 – PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION MODERNIZATION IMPROVEMENT AND SERVICE 
ENHANCEMENT ACCOUNT (PTMISEA) 

In November 2006, California Voters passed a bond measure enacting the Highway Safety, 
Traffic Reduction, Air Quality and Port Security Bond Act of 2006. Of the $19.925 billion of 
State general obligation bonds authorized, $4 billion was set aside by the State as instructed by 
the statute as the Public Transportation Modernization Improvement and Service Enhancement 
Account (PTMISEA). These funds are available to the California Department of Transportation 
for intercity rail projects and to transit operators in California for rehabilitation, safety or 
modernization improvements, capital service enhancements or expansions, new capital projects, 
bus rapid transit improvements or for rolling stock procurement, rehabilitation or replacement.  

Since fiscal year 2007-08, the City has received funding for the following projects: (1) Bus LED 
Designation Signs and Brochure Holders; (2) Construction of Timed Fill Compressed Natural 
Gas (CNG) Bus Fueling Station; (3) Compressed Natural Gas Transit Bus (35-foot); (4) Transit 
Transfer Center; (5) Transit Transfer Center Phase II; (6) CNG Slow Fill Compressor; (7) 
Electronic Farebox System; (8) Dispatch Office; (9) Operations and Bus Storage; (10) Paratransit 
Bus Purchase; (11) Bus Parking Expansion; (12) Bus Stop Improvements. 

In fiscal years 2008 through 2020, the Program received a total of $4,997,243 from Proposition 
1B funds and expended $5,053,942 including the expense of interest on the unspent funds. The 
Program did not receive additional Proposition 1B funding in fiscal years 2017 through 2020 and 
during the year ended June 30, 2020 expended $259,362 including the expense of interest on 
unspent funds. The schedule below delineates the funds received and the spending of these funds 
along with the interest earned on the unexpended funds. 

17



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 7 – PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION MODERNIZATION IMPROVEMENT AND SERVICE 
ENHANCEMENT ACCOUNT (PTMISEA) (Continued) 

Expended 
Grant through Transfers to

Project Name Amount Interest June 30, 2020 Other Projects
Bus LED Designation Signs and

Brochure Holders $12,975 $163 ($13,138)
Construction of Timed Fill Compressed 

Natural Gas (CNG) Bus Fueling Station 315,495          6,889 (279,853) ($42,531)
Compressed Natural Gas Transit Bus (35-foot) 495,495          14,112 (507,333) (2,274)
Transit Transfer Center 1,265,574       5,539 (1,549,015) 277,902
Transit Transfer Center Phase II & III 532,437          14,921 (1,129,350) 581,992
CNG Slow Fill Compressor 350,000          392 (350,392)
Electronic Farebox System 200,000          1,016 (201,016)
Dispatch Office 130,000          183 (130,183)
Operations and Bus Storage 377,740          322 (378,062)
Paratransit Bus Purchase 900,000          3,231 (872,586) (30,645)               
Bus Parking Expansion 267,527          8,672 (276,199)             
Bus Stop Improvements 150,000          1,259 (151,259)           

Total $4,997,243 $56,699 ($5,053,942)

NOTE 8 – RISK MANAGEMENT 

The TDA Funds are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of; damage to, and 
destruction of assets, and natural disaster. The TDA Funds participate in the Central San Joaquin 
Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA), as a part of the City. The purpose of 
CSJVRMA is to spread the adverse effect of losses among the members and to purchase excess 
insurance as a group, thereby reducing its expense. The funds, through cost allocation from the 
City, contribute their pro rata share of anticipated losses to pools administered by CSJVRMA. 
More information regarding the City’s risk management program can be found in the basic 
financial statements of the City of Turlock. 

NOTE 9 – PENSION PLAN 

Personnel costs accounted for under TDA and FTA funding include costs associated with the City’s 
pension benefit plan.  The costs attributed to TDA and FTA funding are part of the City’s 
Miscellaneous Plan, an Agent-Multiple Employer Plan administered by the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), and are allocated to TDA and FTA funds in the same 
manner as they are allocated to other City funds which have personnel expenditures.  More 
information regarding the Plan can be found in the basic financial statements for the City of 
Turlock. 

18



CITY OF TURLOCK 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 

NOTE 10 – OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Personnel costs accounted for under TDA and FTA funding include costs associated with the City’s 
compensated absences and retiree healthcare benefit plans. The costs attributed to TDA and FTA 
funding are part of the City-wide plans and are allocated to TDA and FTA funds in the same 
manner as they are allocated to other City funds which have personnel expenditures. More 
information regarding these plans can be found in the basic financial statements for the City of 
Turlock. 

NOTE 11 – MAJOR CONTRACTOR 

On November 25, 2017, the City entered into a contract agreement with Storer Transit Systems to 
operate and maintain the DART and BLAST programs. The term is from November 25, 2017, to 
June 30, 2021, with an option to extend for an additional two years. Storer Transit Systems is paid 
monthly based on a fixed fee plus a fee calculated at a fixed rate per vehicle multiplied by the 
number of service hours. Expenses incurred under this contract amounted to $1,540,428 for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

NOTE 12 – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The City receives Federal Transit Administration (FTA) monies for the purchase of buses, 
construction of related maintenance facilities, and for partial funding of its transit operations. 
State and federal grants received by the City for specific purposes are subject to review and audit 
by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to request for reimbursement for expenditures 
disallowed under the terms of the grants. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be 
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects 
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

19



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON  
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  

AND ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT  
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable Members of the City Council 
  of the City of Turlock 
  Turlock, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Transportation Development Act Funds 
(TDA Funds) of the City of Turlock (City), California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the TDA Funds’ basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated March 12, 2021. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered TDA Funds’ internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of TDA Funds’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of TDA Funds’ internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the TDA Funds’ 
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency 
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified.  

21



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the TDA Funds’ financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. Our procedures included the applicable audit procedures 
contained in §6666 and §6667 of Title 21 of California Code of Regulations and tests of compliance with the 
applicable provisions of the Transportation Development Act and the allocation instructions and resolutions of 
the Stanislaus Council of Governments (StanCOG).  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control for the year ended June 30, 2020, which is an 
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the TDA Funds’ internal control 
or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the TDA Funds’ internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is 
not suitable for any other purpose. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the StanCOG, management, City Council, others 
within the City, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties; however, this restriction is not intended to limit the 
distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
March 12, 2021 

22



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON  
COMPLIANCE FOR TDA PROGRAM FUNDS AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 6666 AND 6667 OF THE RULES AND 
REGULATIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE  

IN THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT STATUTES AND ADMINISTRATIVE  
CODE FOR 1987 AND THE ALLOCATION INSTRUCTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS OF THE 

STANISLAUS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
of the City of Turlock 
Turlock, California 

Report on Compliance for TDA Funds 

We have audited the City of Turlock, California’s (City), Streets Special Revenue Fund and the Transportation 
Enterprise Fund (TDA Funds) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in Section 6666 
and 6667 of the Rules and Regulations of the California Administrative Code in the Transportation 
Development Act Statutes and Administrative Code for 1987 (the Act) and the allocation instructions and 
resolutions of the Stanislaus Council of Governments (StanCOG) that could have a direct and material effect on 
the TDA Funds for the year ended June 30, 2020.  

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its TDA Funds.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the TDA Funds based on our audit of the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
Act and the allocation instructions and resolutions of the StanCOG.  Those standards, the Act, and the allocation 
instructions and resolutions of the StanCOG require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on the TDA Funds occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the TDA Funds’ compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the TDA Funds. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the TDA Funds’ compliance. 

Opinion on TDA Funds 

In our opinion, the TDA Funds complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the TDA Funds for the year ended June 30, 
2020. 

23



Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we 
considered the TDA Funds’ internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on the TDA Funds to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the TDA Funds and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Act and the allocation instructions and resolutions of 
the StanCOG, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the TDA Funds’ internal control 
over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the TDA 
Funds on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the TDA Funds will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of the TDA Funds that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control for the year ended June 30, 2020, which is an 
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Act and the 
allocation instructions and resolutions of the StanCOG. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

24



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the StanCOG, management, City Council, others 
within the City, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties; however, this restriction is not intended to limit the 
distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
March 12, 2021 

25



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON  
COMPLIANCE FOR TDA FUNDS AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE  
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION MODERNIZATION, 
IMPROVEMENT AND SERVICE ENHANCEMENT  

ACCOUNT (PTMISEA) 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
of the City of Turlock 
Turlock, California 

Report on Compliance for PTMISEA Projects 

We have audited the revenues and expenses of the City of Turlock, California’s (City), Public Transportation 
Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account Projects, as disclosed in Note 7 to the 
accompanying financial statements, a program of the Transportation Enterprise Fund, (the Projects) compliance 
with the rules and regulations of the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service 
Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) that could have a direct and material effect on the Projects for the year 
ended June 30, 2020.  

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to the Projects.  

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Projects based on our audit of the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
PTMISEA.  Those standards and the PTMISEA require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on the Projects occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
about the Projects’ compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the Projects. However, 
our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Projects’ compliance. 

Opinion on the PTMISEA Projects 

In our opinion, the Projects complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the Projects for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

27



Other Matters 

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.   

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we 
considered the Projects’ internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct 
and material effect on the Projects to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the Projects and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with the PTMISEA, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Projects’ internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the 
Projects on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the Projects will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of the 
Projects that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control for the year ended June 30, 2020, which is an 
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the PTMISEA and 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the State of California Department of 
Transportation, management, City Council, others within the City, and federal awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties; 
however, this restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
March 12, 2021

28



CURRENT STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

TDA2019-001 – Timely Submission of the Annual Financial Audit to StanCOG and CalTrans 

Criteria:  The City is required to file the annual audit of the Transportation Development Act Funds (TDA 
Funds) with the Stanislaus Council of Governments (StanCOG) within 180 days of the end of the fiscal year or 
December 31st.  And, since the City receives Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service 
Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) funding that is included in the TDA Funds’ annual audit, the TDA Funds 
report is also required to be filed with the California Department of Transportation (CalTrans) within 180 days 
of the end of the fiscal year.  The City may request a 90-day extension from both StanCOG and CalTrans from 
the December 31 deadline to March 30. 

Condition:  The City did not request an extension for the filing of the June 30, 2018 financial statements with 
StanCOG or CalTrans, and they were not filed with StanCOG or CalTrans prior to December 31, 2018 or prior to 
March 30, 2019.  

Cause:  Staffing changes and delays in preparing the general ledger for audit resulted in the TDA Funds’ records 
not being available for audit until the first quarter of the subsequent fiscal year. 

Effect:  The City is not in compliance with the annual financial audit filing requirements of StanCOG and 
PTMISEA, which may affect future TDA funding. 

Recommendation:  The City should develop procedures to ensure the TDA Funds’ information is available for 
audit in time to file the annual financial audit by December 31 of each year, or request an extension and ensure it is 
filed prior to the extension deadline of March 30. 

Current Status:  Implemented. 

TDA2018-001 – Timely Submission of the Annual Financial Audit to StanCOG and CalTrans 

Criteria:  The City is required to file the annual audit of the Transportation Development Act Funds (TDA 
Funds) with the Stanislaus Council of Governments (StanCOG) within 180 days of the end of the fiscal year or 
December 31st.  And, since the City receives Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service 
Enhancement Account (PTMISEA) funding that is included in the TDA Funds’ annual audit, the TDA Funds 
report is also required to be filed with the California Department of Transportation (CalTrans) within 180 days 
of the end of the fiscal year.  The City may request a 90-day extension from both StanCOG and CalTrans from 
the December 31 deadline to March 31. 

Condition:  Although the City had obtained an extension for filing the June 30, 2017 financial statements with 
StanCOG and CalTrans, the financial statements were not filed prior to March 31, 2018.  And the City did not 
request an extension for the filing of the June 30, 2018 financial statements, and they were not filed with StanCOG 
or CalTrans prior to December 31, 2018.  

Cause:  Staffing changes and delays in preparing the general ledger for audit resulted in the TDA Funds’ records 
not being available for audit until the first quarter of the subsequent fiscal year. 

Effect:  The City is not in compliance with the annual financial audit filing requirements of StanCOG and 
PTMISEA, which may affect future TDA funding. 

29



CURRENT STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

TDA2018-001 – Timely Submission of the Annual Financial Audit to StanCOG and CalTrans 
(Continued) 

Recommendation:  The City should develop procedures to ensure the TDA Funds’ information is available for 
audit in time to file the annual financial audit by December 31 of each year, or request an extension and ensure it is 
filed prior to the extension deadline of March 31. 

Current Status:  Implemented. 

30















































































































































































































Finance Department
Updated to 3/17/2021

General Fund Overview FY 2020/2021

Through February 28, 2021

8 months ended 

2/28/2021

Legal / 

Attorney 

Expenses *

2020-2021 

Amended

Budget

2020-2021 

Remaining 

Budget

% of Budget 

Received/

Expended

(Benchmark 67%)

Revenues 26,667,447$           -$                  47,854,995$           21,187,548$           56%

Expenditures *includes legal exp.

  Administration 3,086,970               368,817       5,890,563               2,803,593               52%

       COVID-19 2,113,451               12,571         2,599,463               486,012                   

  Cannabis 8,619                       7,277            201,984                   193,365                   

  Measure A -                                -                    -                                -                                

  Police 14,101,268             21,895,608             7,794,340               64%

  Fire 6,424,814               9,862,684               3,437,870               65%

  Development Services 453,666                   793,689                   340,023                   57%

  Public Facilities 146,564                   289,199                   142,635                   51%

  Parks 545,820                   899,338                   353,518                   61%

  Recreation 497,387                   1,004,431               507,044                   50%

  Special Public Safety 409,775                   857,845                   448,070                   48%

  Tourism 164,120                   354,808                   190,688                   46%

Total Expenditures 27,952,454$           388,665$     44,649,612$           16,697,158$           63%

Budgeted Revenue Over / (Under) Expenses 3,205,383$             

Salaries and Benefits Only:

  Police 12,620,908             19,714,494             7,093,586               64%

  Fire 5,893,933               8,931,091               3,037,158               66%

  All Other General Fund (GF) 3,872,088               6,382,329               2,510,241               61%

Total Salaries and Benefits 22,386,929$           35,027,914$           12,640,985$           64%

Salaries and Benefits % of GF 80% 78%

REVENUES

The year to date numbers for the General Fund show six (6) months of sales tax revenue totaling $8.4 million, CARES revenue of $3.4

million, TOT revenues of $817,000 through 12/31/2020, Business License revenue of $773,000, Garbage Collection Franchise revenue

of $1.1 million, and property tax revenue of $2.9 million. Other General Fund revenues lag slightly behind due to accruals at year end

and timing of the payments. Of special note, following the Council meeting adopting the FY 20/21 mid year adjustments, separate

funds were established for Cannabis (Fund 117) and Measure A (Fund 118) where $1.07 million (Cannabis) and $2.7 million (Measure

A) revenues have been budgeted. These revenues are accounted for in separate funds per Council direction to be utilized per the

policies and priorities agreed to and approved by Council. Finance has no indication that the General Fund revenues, as budgeted, will

not meet expectations.

EXPENDITURES

The year to date expenditures are at 63% of the budget, which is reasonable based on the eight (8) month mark. As salaries and

benefits make up such a large portion of the General Fund, the detail is provided in a separate section for review. These expenditures

are 64% for the eight (8) months ended 2/28/2021 with all departments trending at or slightly below the benchmark of 67%.

Overtime related to COVID-19 is $750,000 through February 2021. Recreation expenditures are below the benchmark due to the

County-wide restrictions limiting the City's ability to provide many of our recreation programs. Legal/attorney expenses detailed

above are for fees paid through November and December. Staff is in the midst of processing invoices for December through February.

FINANCE UPDATE

The first eight (8) months of the fiscal year appear to be on target with the adopted budget for FY 2020/2021 with sales tax coming in

slightly higher than originally anticipated. Currently, the largest uncertainties surround the COVID-19 pandemic and its long-term

implications for the City, especially as it relates to Recreation. Staff adjusted revenues and expenses at the FY 2020/2021 mid year

budget process and feel confident about these adjustments. Staff will continue to monitor the City's finances and provide updates to

Council.

JLand
Text Box
10A1





Incident Summary 
Report

March 23, 2021



Operations Highlights ……………………… Page 2

Incident Summary by Type..………………Page 3

Calls by District ………….………………….. Page 4

Fire Prevention Highlights ………….……. Page 5

Neighborhood Services Highlights ….....Page 6

Tab
le

 o
f C

o
n

te
n

ts

1



O
p

e
ratio

n
s H

igh
ligh

ts

2

Turlock Fire responded 529 emergency calls for service between 

February 16, 2021 through March 15, 2021.  This included three 

structure fires, four vehicle fires, 15 trash/grass fires, 11 injury 

vehicle collisions, and seven hazardous materials calls. Two of the 

vehicle collisions involved major injuries including one fatality. 

Five new firefighters began their employment on March 1, 2021.  

These new employees were hired to fill vacant, budgeted positions 

within the department.  The new firefighters are currently being 

training in a six week, in-house academy.  They will begin their shift 

work on April 10th.  A badge pinning ceremony will take place on 

April 9th at fire station 1.  Invitations will follow soon.

The third and last week of the Engineer academy will take place 

next month followed by a promotional assessment on April 23, 

2021.  Due to retirements and resignations the department has 

several engineer vacancies to fill.  This has traditionally been our 

toughest position to keep staffed.   

COVID19 related calls continue to decline in the department.  As 

the vaccine becomes more available we anticipate this to continue.  

Stanislaus County should move into the less restrictive, red tier very 

soon. 

Training

Training is focusing on the new recruit academy, engineer training 

and captain prep in anticipation of upcoming promotional 

assessments due to vacancies.  In addition, crews have been 

working on mandated EMS skills and individual company trainings.  

The department continues to work with our MCST partners on 

standardization of operating procedures and responses.  We are 

currently reviewing rapid intervention crew tactics, accountability 

and garage fire deployments.  



In
cid

e
n

t Su
m

m
ary B

y In
cid

e
n

t Typ
e

3

22
Fire Calls

334
EMS

15
MVA

7
Hazmat

64
Service 

Calls/Assists

61
Canceled/Non-

emergncy

26
False Alarms

Fires EMS

MVA Hazmat

Service Calls/Assists Cancelled/Non-emergencey

False Alarms

2/16/2021 – 3/15/2021



4

C
alls b

y C
o

u
n

cil D
istrict

125
District 1

143
District 2

109
District 3

147
District 4

5
Other

Calls by District
2/16/2021 - 3/15/2021



5

Fire
 P

reve
n

tio
n

 H
igh

ligh
ts

Within the last month, Fire Prevention attended 23 on and off-site 

meetings, completed and approved 19 plan reviews for life safety, 

adding additional comments. Six miscellaneous inspections for 

projects were conducted and seventeen re-inspections for 

businesses needing follow-up corrections were completed.

Provided final inspections for nine residential solar systems. 

Fire Prevention also completed five water flow tests for new 

buildings, attended five pre-development meetings by Zoom, 

completed five new underground water flush tests for new fire 

systems, and completed five hydrostatic/visual fire sprinkler 

inspection and testing. 

Provided three final inspections for new businesses opening within 

our community.       

Completed three request from State Licensing for day cares. 

Prevention has been busy with a large commercial building, 

attending meetings, reviewing plans, and addressing issues within 

our community.



N
e

igh
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 Se

rvice
s H

igh
ligh

ts

6

Neighborhood Services Code Enforcement Officers completed 203 various 
inspections from February 16, 2021 through March 15, 2021. These inspections 
included refuse, tall weeds, inoperable vehicles, graffiti, and vehicles parked on 
grass. Neighborhood Services Staff Services Assistant received 330 phone calls 
and mailed 130 TMC violation letters. 

Neighborhood Services removed 155 abandoned shopping carts, abated graffiti 
from 142 locations and removed 204 illegal snipe signs (i.e. lost dogs, yard sales, 
and business promotions) none of which was offensive. Public and private, 
abandoned or inoperable vehicles, were addressed resulting in 235 cars orange-
tagged or sent a letter to remove the vehicle.

A total of 15,220 pounds of debris and trash was taken to Scavenger, through 
the combined effort of Neighborhood Services personnel and City of Turlock 
staff.

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

4,600

68,520

2,140

Pounds of Refuse Taken to Scavenger by Month





T U R L O C K   P O L I  C E   D E P A R T M E N T  

STAFF UPDATE  
FEBRUARY 2021  
P R E S E N T E D  T O  C O U N C I L :  M A R C H  2 3 ,  2 0 2 1  

T P D  T i p  L i n e     6 6 8 - 5 5 5 0  e x t .  6 7 8 0      T P D t i p l i n e @ t u r l o c k . c a . u s  

      DEPARTMENT STATISTICS  Current information as of 3/18/21  

MONTHLY TOP 5 CALLS  
FOR SERVICE  

Extra Patrol 520 

Code 6 / Investigation 257 

Suspicious Person 130 

Security Check 129 

Dangerous Driver 96 

      SPECIAL NOTE  

The COVID-19 pandemic has greatly impacted the Turlock Police Department’s reductions shown in this report.  COVID-19 forced 

businesses to close and social gatherings to stop beginning in March 2020, resulting in reductions of monthly calls for service, 

police reports, officers’ self initiated activity, traffic collisions, arrests, crime rate, etc. 

      SOCIAL MEDIA:  

Facebook            
@TurlockPD  

Followers Likes 
+/- from 

Prev. 
Month 

15,875 14,977 +35 

Instagram 
@TurlockPolice  

Followers +/- from Prev. 
Month 

12.8k +200 

Twitter 
@TurlockPolice  

Followers +/-  from 
Prev. Month 

6,963 +16 

YouTube  

Followers +/- from Prev. 
Month 

170 -1 

NextDoor 

Members 
+/- from 

Prev. 
Month 

Neighbor-
hoods 

9,932 +188 64 

S TA F F I N G  

 
Population Authorized 

Sworn Staff 
Operational 
Sworn Staff  

Authorized Officers 
per Capita 

Feb. 2020 74,297 81 66 1.09 

Feb. 2021 74,297 82 69 1.10 

WARRANT ARREST, 52, 9%

AUTO THEFT, 39, 6%

LARCENY, 38, 6%

TRAFFIC STOP, 29, 5%

ASSAULT & BATTERY, 
23, 4%

LARCENY FROM VEHICLE, 
19, 3%

FOUND PROPERTY, 18, 3%

SICK PERSON - SUICIDE, 18, 3%

BURGLARY - AUTO, 16, 3%

TRAFFIC OFFENSE, 15, 2%

ALL OTHER 
REPORT 

CLASSIFICATION
S, 336, 56%

POLICE REPORTS

2,695 

5,934 

3,226

1,430

609

130

203

0 2,000 4,000 6,000

9-1-1 Calls Received

Non-Emergency Calls Received

Calls for Service

Self Iniiated Calls

Reports Taken

Traffic Citations Issued

Arrests

SERVICE DEMANDS



      PART ONE CRIMES (UCR)  YTD as of 3/18/2021 

2021 

JA
N

  

2021 YTD 

Crime Rate  

YTD 
2020 

YTD 
2021  

% Diff. ‘21 
vs ‘20 

FEB
 

M
A

R
 

A
P

R
 

M
A

Y 

JU
N

 

JU
L 

A
U

G
 

SEP
 

O
C

T 

N
O

V
 

D
EC

 

 5 Year 
Avg 

% Diff. 
2021 vs 5 

Yr Avg 

Homicide 0 0.00 1 0 -100% 0           0.4 -100% 

Forcible Rape 1 0.03 7 2 -71% 1           5 -60% 

Robbery 9 0.19 16 14 -13% 5           17.8 -21% 

Agg.  Assault 33 0.74 37 55 49% 22           44 25% 

Burglary 55 1.17 60 87 45% 32           81 7% 

Larceny 72 2.06 264 153 -42% 81           261 -41% 

Veh. Theft 39 1.12 77 83 8% 44           85.6 -3% 

TOTAL 209 5.30 462 394 -15% 185           494.8 -20% 

489 447
481 462

394

509.6 527.2 516.6 500.0 494.8 

200

400

600

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total Part One Crimes

TOTAL 5 Year Average

1

0 0

1

00.0

0.2 0.2 0.2
0.4

0

1

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Homicide

Homicides 5 Year Avg.

5

8

2

7

22.0
2.8

4.0 3.6
5.0

0

5

10

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Forcible Rape

Forcible Rape 5 Year Avg.

15 16
23

16 14

16.6 15.8 16.6 16.8 17.8

0

10

20

30

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Robbery

Robbery 5 Year Avg.

61
46

35 37
55

43.4 46 48 45 44

0

20

40

60

80

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Aggravated Assault

Agg. Assault 5 Year Average

88

61

83

60

8797.6 96.2 88

84 81

40

60

80

100

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Burglary

Burglary 5 Year Average

237 254 265 264

153

258.2 270.0 275.4 262.4 261.0

0

100

200

300

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Larceny - Theft

Larceny - Theft 5 Year Average

82
62

73 77
83

91.8 96.0
83.6 88.4 85.6

0

50

100

150

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Motor Vehicle Theft

Mtr Veh Theft 5 Year Average



 Pedestrian 
Collisions 

Bicyclist 
Collisions Fatal Collisions Injury Collisions Non-Injury 

Collisions 
Private Prop. 

Collisions TOTAL ACC 

Feb. 2020 5 2 0 35 42 1 79 

Feb. 2021 3 4 1 36 11 * 48 

% Chg.  -40% +100% +100% +2.9% -73.8% * -39.2% 

2021 YTD 8 5 1 61 41 * 103 

5 Year Avg.  6 1.8 0.4 48.2 88 * 143.2 

% Chg. vs.  
5 Yr. Avg. +33% +178% +150% +27% -53% * -28% 

PCF’s listed of only 3 or more  

      TRAFFIC COLLISIONS:  

PRIMARY COLLISION FACTORS 

FEB. 2020 FEB. 2021 

Unsafe Lane Change 
(16) 

Green Light 
Violation (6) 

Speeding (10) Red Light 
Violation (6) 

DUI (7) Unsafe Lane 
Change (6) 

Red Light Violation 
(8) 

Failure to Yield 
Right of Way (6) 

*Private Property Collisions are no longer a report classification (beginning in July 2020 – Current). Moving forward, this will phase out but the category will be kept 
on this report to show past years’ counts contributing towards each year’s totals. 

159

136
126

144

103

137.6
145.0

150.2 144.6 143.2

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total Collision Reports

TOTAL COLLISION REPORTS 5 Year Avg.

0 0 0

1 1

0.6

0.4 0.4

0.2

0.4

0

1

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Fatal Collision Reports

FATAL COLLISION REPORTS
5 Year Average

48 48

40

69
61

36.4
41.2

44.6

43.2

48.2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Injury Collision 
Reports

INJURY COLLISION REPORTS
5 Year Average

100
79 80 72

41

89.2 93.2 95.0 93.0 88.0

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Non-Injury Collision 
Reports

NON-INJURY COLLISION REPORTS
5 Year Average

5

4 3

13

8

4.4

4.6
4.2

3.8

6

0

5

10

15

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Peds

Pedestrians 5 Year Avg.

3

0 1

3

5
4.4

4

3.2

2 1.8

0

2

4

6

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Bicyclists

Bicyclists 5 Year Average

YTD as of 3/17/2021 


	Agenda
	3A
	6A
	6B
	6C
	6D
	6E
	6F
	6G
	6H
	6I
	6J
	6K
	8A
	9A
	10A1
	10B1
	10E1



